Through its meetings, the aim of the Sub-Committee on Standards for Children and Families is to provide a high quality experience for staff, parents or carers, officers, members of the community and Sub-Committee members and to ensure that the work of the Sub-Committee is seen in the context of the wider support and challenge process.

- The Convener of the Sub-Committee will provide a high quality experience by ensuring that agenda items run to agreed times. That is, normally and unless agreed otherwise, 30 minutes for each agenda item (pre-school generally 20 minutes), where establishment staff, parents or carers, or members of management committees, voluntary organisations or members of the community have been invited to attend.
- There will be a maximum of three attendees for each agenda item.
- In the case of a school or pre-five establishment, the head teacher or manager and two others, at least one of whom should be a parent/carer representative will be invited to attend the Sub-Committee; also the Chair of the Parent Council where appropriate.
- In the case of a secure unit or a young people's centre, the manager and two others will be invited to attend.
- In the case of a community learning and development centre, the
  community learning and development worker will be invited along with
  two others, one of whom should be the chair of the management
  committee. In the case of community learning and development teams,
  the senior community learning and development worker and two others
  will be invited to attend.
- In the case of a voluntary organisation, up to three representatives will be invited to attend.
- Invitations to attend will be issued in good time.
- Meetings will be cancelled only in exceptional circumstances.
- Attendees will be invited as appropriate, and will be briefed on procedures, through written guidelines, and verbally as required.
- Requests for deputations must be referred for consideration to the Education, Children and Families Committee.

- On arrival, visitors will be met, shown to a suitable waiting area and given information on how long they can expect to wait.
- The setting of the Sub-Committee will be organised to ensure that it is as welcoming as possible.
- Following introduction, the council official will summarise the strengths and areas for development within the report. The invitees will be invited to speak briefly to the report, focusing on sharing their plans for improvement and also describing the experience of inspection/review. Any local elected member(s) in attendance will also be invited to express his or her own views.
- The Chair will then invite questions from members of the Sub-Committee, based on the contents of the report and the comments of invited guests. The aim throughout will be to maintain a focused and high quality dialogue about the process and the contents of the report being presented, carried out in the context of support and challenge.
- Any issues raised from the report during the meeting which require further action will be highlighted and action agreed.
- Finally, the chair will draw the item to a conclusion, provide an appropriate summing up, and thanks to all those involved in the process.
- Following the meeting, appropriate letters will be issued to head teachers or managers summarising the conclusions of the meeting and highlighting positive aspects of the report/review.
- The Sub-Committee may request additional follow-up reports.
- The Sub-Committee minutes will normally be submitted to the next scheduled Sub-Committee meeting for approval. A decision requiring a major change in policy, or the allocation of additional (unbudgeted) funding, will be referred to the Education, Children and Families Committee for approval.

#### Additional Information on Education Scotland/HMIE visits.

HMIE is now part of Education Scotland. Education Scotland schedule a series of visits to schools and establishments each academic session. As schools continue to improve self-evaluation (ie. knowing themselves well and having greater capacity for improvement) the need for external review has been reduced. Education Scotland have therefore moved to a more proportionate approach. Previously schools were inspected as part of the generational cycle which for primary schools was every 7 years and for secondary schools every 6 years. This is no longer the case and the number of inspections being undertaken over an academic session has been reduced.

Currently, the City of Edinburgh Quality Improvement team undertake a follow through visit led by Quality Improvement staff which results in a report within 2 years of the initial Education Scotland inspection. If Education Scotland do not disengage from the school following inspection but plan to return either within 1 or 2 years, this would replace the follow through report by the local authority.

Local authority follow through reports are brought to the education, children and families standards sub-committee however the attendance of the Headteacher is not required unless an elected member wishes to specifically request the attendance of the Headteacher.

## **Education Scotland reports**

These are now in letter form and in parent friendly language. They are structured under 3 main questions;

- How well do children/young people learn and achieve?
- How well does the school support children/young people to develop and learn?
- How well does the school improve the quality of its work?

In addition, the school receive evaluation grades on a 6 point scale for **5 quality indicators**:

- 1.1 Improvements in performance
- 2.1 Learners' experiences
- 5.3 Meeting learners' needs
- 5.1 Curriculum
- 5.9 Self-evaluation

In primary schools where they have a nursery provision, there will be separate evaluations for nursery for 1.1, 2.1 and 5.3

### The 6 point scale is as follows:

Grade	Evaluation
6	Excellent
5	Very Good
4	Good
3	Satisfactory
2	Weak
1	Unsatisfactory

In the last paragraph of the report, Education Scotland will indicate if they will continue engagement with the school. This can be through a further visit with 1 or 2 years or further engagement through the Education Scotland Area Lead Officer who will work with the Quality Improvement Team to secure further improvements.

## How well do children/young people learn and achieve?

This question focuses on attainment and achievement, including comments regarding progress of learners' in literacy and numeracy, the quality of learning and teaching including the involvement of pupils as active participants in their learning, and how children and young people are involved in planning and discussing their own learning. It will also focus on how children and young people are supported to develop their leadership skills.

# How well does the school support children/young people to develop and learn?

This question focuses on meeting the needs of all children including those children and young people with additional support needs and on pastoral support. It also focuses on the curriculum; both curriculum planning at a strategic level and the quality of programmes and courses. It will also focus on how well learning and teaching approaches meet pupils' needs through eg. the pace and challenge of learning and how the planning of learning experiences allows learners to learn in different ways through different activities and approaches.

#### How well does the school improve the quality of its work?

This question focuses on leadership, quality assurance and self-evaluation. It will focus on how well a school's self-evaluation is leading to improvement, the development of leadership of staff, the effective engagement with a range of partners including parents and the school's capacity to improve further.

February 2014